
 
    

 
      

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD AGENDA 
December 8, 2014 

 
 
WELCOME! We are very glad you have joined us for today’s Planning and Zoning meeting. The Planning and Zoning 
Board is an advisory board to City Council comprised of citizen members who voluntarily and without compensation 
devote their time and talents to a variety of zoning and land development issues in the community. All P&Z 
recommendations are subject to final action by City Council. The results of today’s meeting will be presented at the City 
Council meeting on December 16, 2014 for approval of recommended actions. Any person desiring to appeal a 
recommended action of the Board should observe the notice regarding appeals below. CAUTION: Untimely filing by 
any appellant shall result in an automatic denial of the appeal. 
 

 

    Susan Lomas                      Marion Rayburn         Regina Dunay             Chris Rader                 Wade Fischer 
   Board Member                     Board Member          Chairwoman             Board Member            Board Member 

 

     

The Planning and Zoning Board as the Local Planning Agency for the City of Edgewood will meet at 405 Larue 
Avenue, Edgewood, Florida, to consider the items of business listed herein at the time and date indicated below.  
 
Monday, December 8, 2014   6:30 P.M.  
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
      3.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 
            a. Approval of October 13, 2014 Planning & Zoning Board Minutes 
 

3. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Application #_2014-06 - Save A Lot Sign Variance 
 
FUTURE MEETINGS: (SCHEDULE CONTINGENT UPON SUBMITTAL OF ITEMS THAT REQUIRE CONSIDERATION OF 
THE PLANNING & ZONING BOARD AS THE LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY FOR THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD) 

• December 8, 2014 ~ P&Z Meeting 
• December 16, 2014 ~ City Council Meeting 
• January 12, 2015 ~ P&Z Meeting 
• January 20, 2015 ~ City Council Meeting 

 
GENERAL RULES OF ORDER 
The Board is pleased to hear non-repetitive comments related to business before the Board; however, a five (5) minute time limit per person 
has been set by the Board. Large groups are asked to name a spokesperson. If you wish to appear before the Board, please fill out an 
Appearance Request/Lobbyist Registration Form and give it to the City Clerk. When recognized by the Chairman, state your name and 
address and speak directly into the microphone. The City is guided by ROBERTS RULES OF ORDER in governing the conduct of the 
meeting. Persons with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at 407-851-
2920 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  
WE ASK THAT ALL ELECTONIC DEVICES (IE. CELL PHONES, PAGERS) BE SILENCED DURING 
OUR MEETING! 

Thank you for participating in your government!  
APPEALS: According to Edgewood City Code Section 26-24 (2), “any person aggrieved by any 
recommendation of the Board acting either under its general powers or as a Board of Adjustment may file a 
notice of appeal to the City Council within seven (7) days after such recommendation is filed with the City 
Clerk 



 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 13, 2014 

 
 
Attendees: 
 
Susan Lomas, Board Member 
Marion Rayburn, Board Member 
Wade Fischer, Board Member 
Chris Rader, Board Member 
 
Absent: 
 
Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 
 
Staff: 
 
Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk 
Sam Sebaali, P.E. 
Ellen Hardgrove, AICP 
Andrew Hand, City Attorney 
Sgt. John Freeburg 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Co-Chairwoman Susan Lomas called the Planning & Zoning Board meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., 
followed by the Pledge of the Allegiance.  City Clerk Meeks announced there is a quorum, and noted that 
Chairwoman Dunay is absent due to illness. 
 
City Clerk Meeks asked to amend the agenda to swear in new board member Chris Rader.  Chairwoman 
Lomas made the Motion to amend the Agenda per the City Clerk’s request; Seconded by Board 
Member Rayburn.  Unanimously approved 3/0. 
 
City Clerk Meeks swore in new Board member Chris Rader. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 13, 2014 

 
 



 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
(a) Approval of Minutes: 

1 May 12, 2014 

2 June 9, 2014 

3 July 14, 2014 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 
 
MOVER: Wade Fischer 
SECONDER: Marion Rayburn 
AYES: Board Members Lomas, Fischer, Rayburn, Rader 
 

(b) Comprehensive Plan Amendment Transmittal of Scrivener’s Error 

Planner Hardgrove explained that the amendment addresses the “Cemex” property.  She explained how 
the property has always been zoned commercial however, when the Comprehensive Plan was amended, 
the designation on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) shows the property as residential.  This is a 
transmittal to the State for review for an administrative housekeeping correction of a scrivener’s Error. 
 
Co-Chairwoman Lomas opened for comments, there were none.  There were no questions or comments 
from the Board. 
 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] to move forward to City Council with the 
recommendation to transmit to the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) as presented to 
the Board. 
 
MOVER: Wade Fischer 
SECONDER: Susan Lomas 
AYES: Board Members Lomas, Fischer, Rayburn, Rader 
 

(c) Russell Home Site Plan ~ 510 Holden Ave 

Engineer Sebaali said this project came to the Planning & Zoning Board before, as a request for 
variances, which were approved.  He said the site plan was submitted has been reviewed, and it has been 
determined that the plan meets compliance with the City Code.  Engineer Sebaali said he and Planner 
Hardgrove are recommending approval with conditions.  Engineer Sebaali referred to his two (2) October 
8, 2014 memos.  Engineer Sebaali said that one of his memos was addressing the removal of 12 trees. 
 
Planner Hardgrove explained the premise of the variance, which was for a stabilized base to 
accommodate a 41-ton fire truck.   Ellen said the condition of the approval is in case Orange County does 
not approve this portion of the plan; the applicant has to come back to the City (Condition #4).  Planner 
Hardgrove explained the discussion with Jim Worthen regarding Variance #1.   She said there was 
supposed to be coordination between Mr. Worthen and the applicants.   
 
Ross Galbraith, E.I., Engineer for the applicant, introduced himself and said he is available to answer 
questions.   
 

 
2 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 13, 2014 

 
 



 
Engineer Sebaali responded to Planning & Zoning Member Rader’s questions regarding the impervious 
surface, and permission for drainage from the County into Cypress Grove Park.    Board member Rader 
said if there is difficulty with this approval, he wants this Variance to come back to the Board. 
 
Jim Worthen, 4655 Casa Grande, Edgewood.  Mr. Worthen noted that he has met with David Richmond 
twice and thanked him for meeting with him and answering his questions.   Mr. Worthen questioned the 
drainage and said he is not aware of any swales.  He said the water flow lines show the drainage to the 
west, he said the water should be flowing towards the stormwater system.  Engineer Sebaali said they 
reviewed the drainage and there is swale,   He said the drainage will be collecting roof drainage and some 
existing drainage. He said the calculations that were provided show that the swale is adequate for 
retaining the drainage.  The roof drainage will be collected and conveyed to the retention pond.  
Regarding the grade plan, he said if you look at the topology lines, the foot stands about a foot off the 
grade.  He said there is somewhat of a slope on the north line.   Mr. Worthen questioned the demolition 
plan because it did not show asbestos containment.  City Clerk Meeks explained Orange County’s 
permitting process regarding demolition, and asbestos abatement.   Mr. Worthen said he didn’t see any 
tree removal on the north property line.   Mr. Worthen also questioned three power poles; two are being 
removed and one is not being removed.  He wanted clarification as to why they could not run the power 
underground.   Dave Richmond, Board of Directors, Russell Home, said he met with representatives 
from Duke Energy and they do not want to put the power underground.  He confirmed that one pole will 
remain.   Mr. Worthen questioned the dumpster and whether or not it is oriented properly for the dump 
truck to get in.   Engineer Sebaali said this was addressed.  Mr. Worthen questioned the existing 
generator, and the noise and fumes it puts out.  He said they have residents right by the generator.  In 
response to Co-Chairwoman Lomas, Mr. Worthen said the generator comes on once a week.  He asked if 
there is a better location for the generator.  Dave Richmond said the generator is being replaced with a 
new unit.  He said it is more efficient and that it will run once a month to check itself.  He said the new 
generator puts out the same amount of decibel as a power lawnmower.  He said the generator will run off 
of diesel, and will be in an enclosed cabinet.   Ross Galbraith said a swale system has been added, and so 
has a roof gutter system.  He also addressed the grading.  Engineer Sebaali said that the proposed changes 
to the drainage will be an improvement.   He said the applicant meets Code regarding the drainage.   Mr. 
Galbraith said the fence and trees off the boundary stay in place.  Mr. Richmond said the trees are 
between Russell Home’s cypress fence and Mr. Worthen’s chain link fence.  Mr. Galbraith said they met 
with a Waste Management representative and they approved the dumpster plan.   
 
RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] the site plan, with conditions including two additions by 
the Planning & Zoning Board as follows: 
 
CONDITIONS: 
(Sebaali Memo #1) 
 
1. Upon completion of the improvements, the Engineer of Record shall provide the City with an as-

built record drawing of the completed project along with a letter certifying that the improvements 
were built in substantial compliance with the approved plans and permit documents. 

 
2. The contractor is responsible for the notification, location and protection of all utilities that may exist 

within the project limits. 
 
3. Per the construction site inspection requirements of the Orange County MS4 Permit FLS00001 [Part 

III (A)(9)(b)], the Contractor is to notify the City Engineer at SSebaali@feg-inc.us of their intended 
start of construction and construction duration. This notification should be provided a minimum of 
three (3) working days prior to commencement of construction. 

 
 

3 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

OCTOBER 13, 2014 
 
 



 
4. Approval of these plans, if granted by the City of Edgewood, does not grant authority to enter, 

construct or otherwise alter the property of others, nor does it waive any permits that may be 
required by federal, state, regional, county, or other agencies that may have jurisdiction. 

 
5.  The applicant is responsible for all fees associated with the procurement of the site   permits. 
 
(P&Z Additional Conditions) 
6. If Orange County does not approve the use of the existing retention, or not able to get St. Johns 

permit, then this has to come back to the City. 
 
7.   Provide bleeder draining pipe from the northwest swale and connect to the onsite drainage system. 
 
(Sebaali Memo #2) 
8.   No other trees, other than those shown on the Landscape Plan to be removed, are to be removed or 

relocated without City approval. Any additional trees, which are found to be removed at final 
inspection, will be subject to replacement requirements as outline in the Tree Management and 
Protection requirements of the City Code, Chapter 130. 

 
9.  Tree protection shall be provided during and after construction as required by the Tree       

Management and Protection requirements of the City Code, Chapter 130.  
 
10.  Final approval and issuance of Certificate of Occupancy for the building will be subject to inspection 

of the landscape installation and tree replacement as provided in the City Code. 
 
(Hardgrove Memo) 
11. Development shall be consistent with Site Plan date stamped “Oct 03 2014 John Carson Kelly.”  Any 

change to the plan, including but not limited to use of pervious stabilized base for fire-truck turn-
around, must be resubmitted for City of Edgewood staff review and may require re-approval by City 
of Edgewood Council.  

  
12. No Parking Fire Lane signs shall be spaced a maximum of 25 feet apart in fire vehicle turn-around 

area [east, south and west edges].  
 
13. Landscaping shall be consistent with FNGLA Site Plan dated 9/19/14.  
 
MOVER: Chris Rader 
SECONDER: Wade Fischer 
AYES: Board Members Lomas, Fischer, Rayburn, Rader 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
With no further business or discussion, the Planning and Zoning Board meeting adjourned at 7:48 p.m. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Regina Dunay, Chairwoman 
ATTEST: 
_____________________ 
Bea L. Meeks, MMC, CPM 
City Clerk 

 
4 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 13, 2014 

 
 



 

Memorandum 

To: Planning and Zoning Board 

From: Cinnamon Wild, Administrative Assistant 

Date: 12/4/2014 

  Re: Planning and Zoning Meeting on 12/08/14 for  Save A Lot Food Store - 

Edgewood Isle Shopping Center, Hoffner Avenue  – 5639 South Orange Avenue 

 

You will find enclosed the following documentation for your review of the above 

referenced variance application:  

• Planner Hardgrove’s report 

• Notice of Public Hearing 

• Sign Affidavit (Notice sign was properly and timely posted) 

• Variance application and Plans  

Please note that there were 75 letters mailed out on 11/17/2014, and there were three 
(3) letters returned.  To date no one has come to City Hall to request review of the 
file.  

Thank you for your time and consideration of the above applications.  

 

 

 

 

  1 



Save a :Lot Sign Variance                                                                                   Page 1 of 3 
 

 
405 Larue Avenue - Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 

(407) 851-2920 

 
 
 
TO:  Planning and Zoning Board Members 
  Ms. Cinnamon Wild, Assistant City Clerk 
 
XC:  Bea Meeks, City Clerk    
  Drew Smith, City Attorney 
  Ray Bagshaw, Mayor 
 
FROM: Ellen Hardgrove, AICP, City Planning Consultant 
 
DATE:  November 5, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Variance request for Save a Lot sign 
 
Summary 
Request: Exceed maximum wall signage square footage  
Property Owner: DCP Edgewood Isle Lllp 
Agent: Donna Langel, Jones Sign 
Location: Edgewood Isle Shopping Center, Hoffner Avenue 
Tax Parcel: 24-23-29-3404-00-051 
Address:  5639 South Orange Avenue 
 
Request 
The applicant is proposing a 117.52 square feet sign above a 16,621 square feet leased 
space in the Edgewood Isle Shopping Center (location of Save a Lot grocery). Per Code 
Section 122-3(1)8, the maximum allowed is 100 square feet.  This is a replacement sign. 
The current is 149.35 square feet. The change in signage is part of a renovation at the 
Edgewood Isle Shopping Center.  
 
The proposed sign is smaller than the existing sign (see below).  Save a Lot is currently 
in the process of permitting a sign that meets Code @ 90.32 square feet. This sign  only 
includes “Save a Lot” (see below).  Approval of the proposed variance will allow the 
addition of  “food stores” to that signage (see below). The “food stores” portion totals 
27.2 square feet; Thus, the total signage will be 17.52 square feet in excess of the Code 
maximum. 
 
 
 



Save a :Lot Sign Variance                                                                                   Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 
 

Existing 

 

 

Currently in permitting 

 
With Requested Variance 

 
 
 
 
 



Save a :Lot Sign Variance                                                                                   Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 
 
Staff Analysis 
Code Section 122-11 of the sign regulations states variances to the sign regulations 
shall be handled in the same manner as variances are handled for zoning matters in the 
city, i.e., Code Section 134-104.  As stated in Code Section 134-104, where there are 
practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships in complying with the strict letter of the 
Code, the Planning and Zoning Board may recommend to the City Council approval of a 
variance  so that the spirit of this chapter will be observed.  
 
Per Section 134-104(3)b., prior to recommending approval, the Board and City Council 
must find: 
1.  That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land, 

structure, or building involved and which are not applicable to other lands, 
structures or buildings in the same zoning district. 

2.  That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the 
applicant. 

3.  That approval of the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special 
privilege that is denied by this chapter to other lands, buildings or structures in the 
same zoning district. 

4.  That literal interpretation of the provisions contained in this chapter would deprive 
the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning 
district under the terms of this chapter and would work unnecessary and undue 
hardship on the applicant. 

5.  That the variance approved is the minimum variance that will make possible the 
reasonable use of the land, building or structure. 

6.  That approval of the variance will be in harmony with the general intent and purpose 
of this chapter and that such variance will not be injurious to the neighborhood or 
otherwise detrimental to the public welfare. 

 
There are special conditions and circumstances existing in the Edgewood Isle Sopping 
Center, that are not the result of Save a Lot (specifically the need for 
improvement/renovation in the entire shopping center).  It would be in the public’s 
interest to promote the improvement/positive image of the shopping center. Save a Lot 
has found that adding "food stores" to their signage improves their image, eliminating the 
public perception that Save a Lot is a discount outlet.  The changed public’s perception 
will not only have a positive impact on the store, but also the shopping center as a 
whole, creating a catalyst for additional improvement and revitalization. The requested 
signage is significantly less than currently existing and represents a reasonable variance 
in maximum signage square footage to aid in the improved public image. The proposed 
sign size will not be injurious to the neighborhood.   
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval.   

 
ESH 



 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its Regular P&Z meeting on Monday, December 8, 2014, the 
Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Edgewood, will consider Variance Application No. 2014-06 
 to allow Save A Lot food stores at  5637 South Orange Avenue a sign variance.  The 
applicant is proposing a 117.52 square feet sign; the maximum allowed is 100 
square feet.  The property is located in a C-1 Commercial Zoning district. The application was 
submitted by Jones Sign Company, LLC on behalf of Save A Lot food stores.  The meeting will be 
held in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Board’s recommendation will be forwarded to City Council on  
December 17, 2014 at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.  
 
The subject property is legally described as 24-23-293404-00-051  
 

 
 



Interested parties may attend this meeting and be heard with respect to the application for 
variance(s).  In addition, the application may be inspected by the public at the City Clerk’s 
Office, 405 Larue Avenue, Edgewood, Florida. (407-851-2920) 
 
This matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of procedure. Interested parties should limit contact with the 
Planning and Zoning Board and City Council on this topic to properly noticed hearings or to written 
communication to the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
Any person aggrieved by a recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board may file a notice of appeal 
to the City Council within seven days after such recommendation is filed with the city clerk. 
 
The City of Edgewood desires to accommodate persons with disabilities. Accordingly, any physically 
handicapped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, should, at least 48 hours prior to the 
meeting, submit a written request that the physically handicapped person desires to attend the meeting to 
the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
This public hearing may be continued to a future date or dates.  Any interested party is advised 
that the date, time, and place of any continuation shall be announced during the public hearing 
and that no further notices regarding this matter will be published. 
 
 
 
Dated:  November 17, 2014 
 
  


















	1.) 12-08-14 P&Z Agenda
	2.) 10-13-14 P&Z Draft Minutes
	3.) Memorandum to P&Z Staff
	4.) save a lot sign - Ellen's Memo
	Notice to Property Owners
	Sign Affidavit
	Variance Application
	Variance Plans

